Freedom of Information Act 2000 – Domiciliary Social Care
Your request for information has now been considered. The Council holds the information requested.
You asked:
Does Leicester City Council either directly, or sub-contract provision of Domiciliary Social Care (Home Care) to adults?

Answer:

Leicester City Council provides Domiciliary Care to Adults and Commissions Domiciliary Care on behalf of Health.
1) If the answer to question 1 is “No”, please provide the name of the Local Authority responsible for providing these services to citizens within your boundaries. There is no need to answer any further questions.
Not applicable
2) What is a reasonable estimate of:
a. The number of annual hours of Domiciliary Care provided\ commissioned?
Commissioned Hours

1,090,367 in total (2018/19)

945,819 – commissioned by Leicester City Council

144,548 – commissioned on behalf of Health
b. The annual expenditure of specific care provision, either directly or paid to contracted providers?
The annual expenditure of circa £12.7m paid to Framework Providers for commissioned home care services in 2018/19 would cover both LOTs of the Domiciliary Care Framework and would include payments made to contracted providers for both Leicester City Council and Health caseload.
Note – a large proportion of people in receipt of this service receive a Direct Payment (DP) for their care package in order to procure their own services and as such the Council does not commission (or pay) contracted providers under a DP arrangement.
c. The average number of service users provided for within a 12 month period. (Looking specifically for the number at any one time, rather than the number of individuals, which are assumed to be higher due to churn)?
Total 1,588

Leicester City Council 1,529

Health (commissioned by Leicester City Council) 59 

(averages based on a snapshot of the 1st day of each month during 2018/19).

d. The average price paid per hour to external Domiciliary Care Providers for an easy to calculate period, for example 3 months would suffice.
The average hourly rate paid to Framework Providers (based on a simple average of their contracted rates) for the provision of both LOTs of the Domiciliary Care Framework in 2018/19 were:

LOT 1 (Domiciliary Care Services- General) - £14.82 per hour 

LOT 2 (Domiciliary Care Services- Complex) - £15.35 (day rate) and £89.73 (night rate for the whole night – 9 hours)

3) If you contract out these services, very briefly describe how are these arranged. For example, a framework with many providers of equal status, a lead provider and tier 2 and 3 model, spot contracting etc. If there are fixed prices applied, please provide these, or an average.
The Council currently arranges Domiciliary Care through a framework agreement with 27 providers. The framework is split into two lots, generic, and complex. Providers are ranked between 1 and 27 based on their tender evaluation score (80% Quality / 20% price). Each provider has an hourly rate for day and waking nights, a per night for ‘sleep-in’ shifts, and a ‘per-week’ rate for 24hr live in arrangements.

4) With reference to the answer in question 4, please provide the names, and status (tier one, lead, spot etc) of each provider utilised within the current contract.
The following are all “Spot” - 
Adaptus Carers Limited

Amicare Domiciliary Care Services Ltd

Aspire UK

Bluewood Recruitment Ltd

Bonney Care Agency

Care 4U (Leicestershire) limited

Carers Direct Homecare Ltd

Choices Care Ltd

CM Community Care Services Ltd

Direct Health (UK) Limited

Domiciliary Care Services (UK) Limited

Evolving Care Limited

Family Care Agency Ltd

Fosse Healthcare Ltd

Hales Group Limited

Help at Home

HH Care Limited - Meadows

Homecare4U Limited

Medacs Health Care PLC

Melton Care Services Limited

Mi Life Care Services Limited

Precious Hope Heath & Home Care Ltd

Private Home Care UK LTD

Meridian Health & Social Care (Sevacare) 

Spirit Homecare

UK Care Team Ltd

Westminster Homecare Limited

5) With reference to question 5, if you keep a record of their Care Quality Commission Inspection rating (Outstanding, Good, Requires Improvement, Inadequate), please include this.
No – we refer to the Care Quality Commission Website

6) If these arrangements referred to in question 4, have been established as part of a tender process and formal contract, when did these contracts start?
9/10/2017 for the majority. 
A further 7 providers were commissioned in summer 2019 to replace a number of providers who withdrew from the market / unfortunately had a contract terminated due to quality concerns and to add capacity to the framework. These providers did not have a specific shared start date and started once the Council had completed conditions precedent checks.

7) In reference to question 4, if these arrangements have a specific end date, then please provide that date, with explanation as to whether there are unilateral or multilateral extension clauses.
9/10/2022 with an option for extension(s) of period(s) of up to two years to 9/10/2024.

8) If you utilise commissioning strategy that has preferred providers, please give reliable estimates of the utilisation of those providers against their expectation, over the last 6 months. For example: Lead Providers Expectation 65%, Actual 62%, Second Tier Expectation 33%, Actual 15%, Spot purchasing Expectation 5%, Actual 23% etc. If you want to break this down by area or other method, then this is acceptable, but not necessary.
Not applicable

9) Do you anticipate launching a tender process to replace\generate arrangements to subcontract Domiciliary Care provision within the next 2 years, and if so, when?
No, not at this time.
10) Does your current contract utilise Electronic Call Monitoring in relation to billing and payments activity?
Yes.
11) If the answer to question 11 is yes:
a. Is this a centralised purchased system, or do providers utilise their own, or a hybrid?
Providers utilise their own.

b. Does it apply to all providers, or a specific subset by size, contract status etc?
It applies to all providers regardless of size etc.

c. What is the mechanism utilised to determine payments to providers, for example, commissioned care, a banding system of rounding (with details), a per minute system? Please briefly explain if there is another system employed.
It is a banded system based on delivered hours.

12) In relation to the answers in question 12, do you anticipate making changes to this approach either in the next tender process or foreseeable future? If so, can you provide a brief reason?

We are currently exploring the benefits of using a centralised purchased system for all providers.
Rational: money saving for the providers & ability to globally monitor quality within the sector.

13) In relation to question 12, have you made changes to the approach in the last 24 months, and if so briefly, why?

No

14) How much do you reliably estimate that DTOC in relation to Social Care, reason “E – Awaiting a Home Care Package”, cost Leicester City Council over the last 12 months.
We do not keep this information.  Therefore this letter acts as a refusal notice under Section 17.1 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 because, in accordance with Section 1.1 of the Act, this information is not held by Leicester City Council.
15) If you have an outstanding list of care hours that are waiting to be started under the arrangements referred to in question 4, then please provider either an average, or month by month detail, of the number of hours outstanding (sometimes referred to as pending). If these are collected and grouped by reason, then please provide the breakdown of reasons.
The average awaiting care hours over the last month are 47.31.  
This figure represents awaiting care hours from 22/01/2020 to 12/02/2020.   
The weekly hours awaiting were, 100.75, 12.25, 32.5, 43.75.  
The reasons that these would be awaiting care would be in the following range:

Lack of carer capacity in this postcode.
Time Critical was not possible.

Service User’s preferences were not possible.

If you are dissatisfied with the handling of your request, please write, explaining your grounds of appeal, to: 
Information Governance & Risk Team

Leicester City Council

Legal Services

4th Floor, City Hall 
115 Charles Street

Leicester LE1 1FZ
e-mail: info.requests@leicester.gov.uk 


